LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Date:

Tuesday 10 May 2022

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Microsoft Teams – please click here

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Martin Tiedemann, Councillor Linda Bray, Councillor Emma Nye,
Councillor Irfan Mohammed, Councillor Rezina Chowdhury, Councillor Ibrahim Dogus, Deputy Mayor,
Councillor Pauline George and Councillor Becca Thackray

Substitute Members
Councillor Joshua Lindsey, Councillor John Kazantzis, Councillor Jennie Mosley, Councillor Matthew
Bennett, Councillor Andy Wilson, Councillor Danial Adilypour, Councillor Donatus Anyanwu, Councillor
Claire Holland, Councillor Jon Davies, Councillor Liz Atkins, Councillor Marcia Cameron, Councillor
Timothy Windle, Councillor Stephen Donnelly and Councillor Clair Wilcox
Members Required for this meeting will be
Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Irfan Mohammed and Councillor Timothy Windle

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Julia Skinner, Telephone: 020 7926 0147; Email: jskinner@lambeth.gov.uk

Published on: Friday 29 April 2022

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How members of the public can view the meeting online
This is a Microsoft Teams Live Event meeting. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking the above link
will take you to the meeting page where you will be prompted to download the app or watch on the web
instead. Please follow the instructions to watch on the web. On doing so, you can join our live event
anonymously.

How Members of the Committee and public participants can access the meeting
Please refer to the joining instructions you have already received – do not use the link above.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

Page
Nos.
1

Election of Chair

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para.
4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a
committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from
the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that matter
and must not participate in any vote on that matter unless a
dispensation has been obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

3

Minutes

1-4

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 6 April 2022 as
a correct record of the proceedings.

4

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises
Licence

5 - 10

Strategic Director of Residents Services
Contact: Bina Patel, Licensing Manager, 0207 926 4103
Email: bpatel@lambeth.gov.uk

4a

Between The Bridges Public Car Park Belvedere Road
London SE1 8XZ (Bishop's Ward)

5

Consideration of Objections to Temporary Event Notices

5a

65 - 67 Clapham High Street London SW4 7TG (Ferndale
Ward)

11 - 88

89 - 100

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
Wednesday 6 April 2022 at 7.00 pm

Members Present:

1

Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Rezina Chowdhury and Councillor
Jon Davies (Substitute)

Election of Chair
MOVED by Councillor Jon Davies, SECONDED by Councillor Rezina Chowdhury
RESOLVED: That Councillor Fred Cowell be elected Chair for the meeting.

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
There were none.

3

Minutes
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 3 March 2021 and 17 March
2021 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record of the proceedings.

4

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises Licence

4a

Brxtn Studios First Floor 404 To 406 Coldharbour Lane London SW9 8LF
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a new premises licence. The
Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to chapters 2, 3, 8, 9, 10 of the Statutory Guidance, and
to Sections 1, 3, 4, 8, 15, 17 of the Statement of Licensing Policy, as the ones particularly
relevant to this application. The options available to the Sub-Committee were set out in
paragraph 6 of the report on page 20.

Mr Ola Owojori, Licensing Officer, informed the Sub-Committee that:



This was an application for a new premises licence for Brxtn Studios at 404 to 406
Coldharbour Lane.
The applicant originally sought licensing authorisation for regulated entertainment, sale
of alcohol and late-night refreshments, Monday to Sunday from 10:00 to 00:30, with
opening hours from 10:00 to 01:00.

Page 2









Subsequent to the publication of the report and following representation against the
application, the applicant had written to the objectors, and the application had been
revised to include the following changes: Sunday to Thursday from 10:00 to 23:00 and
Friday and Saturday from 10:00 to 00:00 with revised opening hours from Sunday to
Thursday 10:00 to 23:30 and Friday and Saturday from 10:00 to 00:30.
There were 14 representations received against the application including one from a
local councillor, twelve from local residents, and one from the licensing authority.
Mr Jack Spiegler was present as the Agent to the Applicant, Mr Chris Bourchier, who
was also present.
Ms Bina Patel was present representing the licensing authority.
No local residents confirmed attendance to the hearing.
The application can be found in the report on pages 23-36, the plan for the premises on
page 37, the representation against the application on pages 39-61.
The correspondence from the applicant amending the application had been forwarded to
all interested parties.

Presentation by the Applicant
The Chair asked Mr Jack Spiegler, representing the applicant to clarify the nature of the
business and premises.
In response, Mr Jack Spiegler informed the Sub-Committee that:




The premises was located on the first floor with access within Market Row. There was a
fire escape leading into Coldharbour Lane, but access will be predominantly through the
Market Row entrance. It won’t be immediately obviously to members of the public
passing by as there was no shop front.
Regarding the type of business, the premises had been used, and it was the applicant’s
intention to continue for it to be used as a multi-use community space. The space also
had sound proofed recording studios to grant aspiring artists a platform to show cast
talent. Some of the events have involved licensed activities, such as a small bar set up
with contactless payment for beer and wine. Other activities would require no licensed
activities.

In response to questions from Members, Mr Jack Spiegler confirmed:








There were concerns by objectors that the type of premises proposed lacked clarity.
Letters were sent out to address their concerns and invites for discussion are open.
Key responsible authorities were consulted before submitting the application and noted
that the police and noise service did not object to the application, even in its original
form.
Regarding noise nuisance concerns, the applicant had undertaken some sound proofing
work and comprehensive conditions proposed by the licencing authority had been
agreed, as well as sound limits conditions 60 and 12 which directly addressed residents’
concerns. Also conditions 7, 8, 9, 11, 19, and 20, demonstrated the applicant’s
commitment to ensure residents were not disturbed by noise.
Finally, in relation to the opening hours, the applicant had reduced the hours to
correspond with Cllr O’Hara’s suggestion which can be found in the report on page 44.
The proposed designated smoker’s area was on Coldharbour Lane. The applicant will

Page 3




propose the condition of no drinks outside to prevent smokers remaining outside for long
periods. If there were any complaints, the applicant would be happy to propose
alternative solutions.
Events had been adequate with one toilet so far, if it became an issue in the future the
applicant would consider installing an additional toilet.
Queues were highly unlikely to form but, on occasions when people congregated before
an event, it would be contained within Market Row

Presentation by Interested Parties
Ms Bina Patel, representing the Licensing Authority, asked for clarifications on the following:
 The applicant confirmed the premises had capacity for 120 patrons and health and
safety recommendations require a minimum of two WC facilities per 50 patrons. In the
occasion of reaching full capacity, what facilities would be available for patrons to use?
 How will the applicant ensure there was no build-up of smokers on Market Row which
could disturb people going in and out of the market?
 The applicant to clarify the location of the main entrance on the plans.
 Correction of typo on Condition 20 to be amended as the word ‘by’ was missing.
In response to questions, Mr Jack Spiegler confirmed:






The applicant will submit an amended version of the plans that clearly showed the exit
and entrance. The Chair also requested that the name of the street be added;
Coldharbour Lane by “fire escape to street” and Market Row by “entrance”.
The applicant expressed the difficulty in determining where smokers would be coming
from given that there were different restaurants inside the market. Mr Spiegler also
added that no prior complaint around smokers on Market Row had been received,
however if this changed the applicant’s Marketing Team will monitor this to observe
where smokers were coming from.
The applicant explained that many WC facilities existed within the market that patrons
could use. Additionally, Mr Spiegler noted that guidance referred to by Ms Bina Patel are
aimed at premises where alcohol was the primary activity which was not the case here
which would mean a less demand on sanitary provision.

Adjournment and Decision
At 7:32 pm, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the legal advisor and
clerk to deliberate in private.
The Sub-Committee had heard and considered representations from Mr Jack Spiegler, Mr Chris
Bourchier, and Ms Bina Patel.
Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open to them and the need for any
decision to be proportionate. The Sub-Committee decided to grant the application for the
following reasons:


Subject to the conditions agreed between the Licensing Authority and the applicant’s
amendments to its proposed operating schedule as detailed in the applicant’s letter on
the 28 March and subject to the revised hours contained in the applicant’s letters of the
28 March which were included in the additional submission to this committee;

Page 4




The committee after having carefully reviewed all the evidence, do not feel any further
conditions are needed in this instance and that these are sufficient conditions to ensure
that the licensing objectives are promoted.
The written decision will follow from this hearing and all parties have 21 days to appeal
from notification of the decision.

RESOLVED: To grant the application.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to grant
the application and provided reasons for the decision as outlined above. The Sub-Committee
had considered all the options available to them and ultimately felt that the applicant met the
concerns which had been raised. The Chair confirmed that written notification of the decision
would be sent in due course.

The meeting ended at 19:45
CHAIR
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Friday 10 May 2022
Date of Despatch: Thursday 14 April 2022
Contact for Enquiries: Shyrina Rantisi
Tel: 020 7926 0544
E-mail: srantisi1@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4

Page 5

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 10 MAY 2022
Licensing Application for the Grant of Premises Licence:
1. Between The Bridges Public Car Park Belvedere Road London SE1 8XZ (Bishops)

Ward: Bishop’s
Portfolio: Deputy Leader of the Council (Jobs, Skills and Community Safety) Councillor Jacqui
Dyer
Report Authorised by: Bayo Dosunmu: Strategic Director of Resident Services
Contact for enquiries: Ola Owojori, Licensing Officer, Public Protection and Regulatory
Services, 020 7926 1649, oowojori@lambeth.gov.uk
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report sets out details of applications for the variation of a premises licence on which
representations have been submitted by interested parties.

RECOMMENDATION
That the application set out in the Appendix to this report be considered having regard to the Council's
Licensing Policy, the Licensing Objectives and the representation(s) received.

CONSULTATION
Name of
consultee
Selina Waife
and Jean-Marc
Moocarme

Directorate or
Organisation
Legal and
Governance

Date sent to
consultee

Date response
received from
consultee

Comments
appear in
report
(paragraph(s))

19.04.2022

19.04.2022

N/A

REPORT HISTORY
Authorised by
Executive Member

Date report drafted

Report deadline

Date report sent

19.04.2022

26.04.2022

26.04.2022

APPENDICES
1.

Between The Bridges Public Car Park Belvedere Road London SE1 8XZ (Bishops)

Page 6
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

A licence from the Council is required for the supply of alcohol, and regulated entertainment.

1.2

A person (including a business) may make an application for a new Premises Licence or a
variation to an existing Premises Licence. Where representations are received a Licensing SubCommittee must consider the application. The Sub-Committee, when considering such
applications, shall carry out its function under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view to the Council's
Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

The Licensing Sub-Committee has responsibility for exercising the Council's powers in respect of
the Licensing Act 2003. Determination by the Committee of the applications appended to this
report is required because representation(s) to the application(s) have been received.

2.2

Details of the application(s) are set out in the Appendix to this report. All statutory consultation
requirements have been complied with by the applicant(s) as set out in paragraph 3 below. The
results of consultation are reported in the appendices relating to each application. Public notice
has been given in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.

2.3

The applicants and persons making representations have been invited to attend the meeting.

2.4

The fees for premises and personal licences are prescribed within the Licensing Act 2003; in the
case of Premises Licences, the fees are based on the business rate of the premises.

3.

CONSULTATION REQUIREMENTS

3.1

The Licensing Act 2003 requires applicants for licences to consult and submit relevant
documentation to the Responsible Authorities as follows:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.

Fire Authority;
Health & Safety Section;
Noise Service;
Police;
Social Services;
Home Office
Town Planning; and,
Trading Standards.

3.2

Applicants are also required to advertise the application by displaying public notices on or near the
premises and by advertising the application in a local newspaper available in the vicinity of
premises. An applicant’s’ failure to comply with all of the above consultation requirements would
invalidate the application. All applications set out in the appendix of this report have complied with
the consultation requirements.

4.
4.1

FINANCE

5.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Page 7
5.1

The licensing of premises for the supply of alcohol, regulated entertainment and late night
refreshment fall within the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

5.2

When considering licence applications the Sub-Committee shall carry out its function with a view to
the Council's Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives. The
Licensing Objectives are:
a.
b.
c.
d.

5.3

the prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;
the prevention of public nuisance; and,
the protection of children from harm.

The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have:
a.
b.
c.
d.

a direct relationship to the promotion of one or more of the 4 licensing objectives;
regard to the statement of licensing policy;
regard to the Secretary of State's Guidance; and,
there must not be a 'blanket policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of
discretion in each individual case is precluded.

Applications must be considered with regard to the principles of fair process and the Human Rights
Act.
5.4

The purpose of Lambeth’s Statement of Licensing Policy is to make clear to applicants and
relevant representatives the considerations that will be taken into account when determining
applications. It is also intended to guide the Licensing Committee when considering licensing
applications; however the Licensing Committee must consider each application on its own merit
and only allow exceptions to its own policy where the circumstances of the application justify it.

5.5

Subject to both the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy and Statutory Guidance having been
properly considered a Sub Committee may depart from them if there are good reasons for doing
so. Full reasons must be given and Sub Committees should be aware that such departures could
give rise to an appeal or judicial review.

5.6

The Statutory Guidance, Chapter 10, states that only necessary, proportionate conditions, which
promote one or more of the licensing objectives, should be attached to the licence if it is granted
(paragraph 10.11). The Licensing Authority may therefore only impose such conditions as are
necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the
representations (paragraph 10.11), and should avoid straying into undisputed areas (paragraph
9.24). Statutory Guidance also states that the pool of conditions that are supplied by the Secretary
of State should not be applied universally irrespective of particular circumstances, but may be used
as examples that can be tailored to suit individual premises and particular situations.

5.7

When considering an application for the variation of an existing licence only the variation is subject
to determination. No changes can be made to a licence or the conditions attached unless they are
subject to the variation application.

5.8

Members are advised that when considering applications to vary an existing licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Part 3, Section 35, paragraphs 3
and 4.

Page 8
5.9

Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the
representations – take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:
a.
b.

modify the conditions of the licence (conditions are deemed to be modified if any are altered,
omitted or any new condition added); or,
reject the whole or part of the application

If neither of these steps are taken, the application must be granted.
5.10 Members are advised that when considering applications for a new Premises Licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Chapter 17, Part 3, Section 18
paragraph 4.
5.11 Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the
representations, take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:
a.

b.
c.
d.

to grant the licence subject to:
i.
the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such extent as the authority
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and
ii.
any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the licence;
to exclude from the scope of the license any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates;
to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; or,
to reject the application.

5.12 When determining an application for a review of a premises licence members may take any of the
following steps they consider necessary to promote the licensing objectives:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

to modify the conditions of the licence;
to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
to remove the designated premises supervisor;
to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
to revoke the licence; or,
to take no action.

5.13 It is considered inappropriate for officers involved in the administration of applications to make
recommendations. However officers from the Responsible Authorities may request conditions be
imposed on a licence and make recommendations with regard to the licensing objectives.
5.14 In accordance with the provisions of Part 1 of Schedule 5 of the Act, where a Licensing Authority
rejects an application for a new premises licence or refuses (in whole or in part) an application to
vary a premises licence the applicant may appeal the decision.
5.15 Where the Licensing Authority grants an application for a new premises licence the premises
licence holder can appeal any decision to impose conditions on the premises licence, to exclude a
licensable activity from the scope of the premises licence or to refuse to specify a named individual
as the Designated Premises Supervisor.
5.16 Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to an application contends: that the
licence should not have been granted; or that different or additional conditions should have been

Page 9
imposed on the licence; or that a licensable activity should have been excluded from the scope of
the premises licence; or that the licensing authority should have refused to specify a named
individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor, they may appeal the decision.
5.17 Appeals are to be made to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 days beginning with the date of
notification of the decision. Further details are set out in the Act.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

Agenda Item 4a

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 10 MAY 2022
Item No: 4a
Report title: Between The Bridges Public Car Park Belvedere Road London SE1 8XZ
Applicant: Between The Bridges Ltd
Application type: Premises Licence (Time Limited Event)
Application date: 2 March 2022
Wards: Bishop’s
Premises Type: Parks & Open Space Venues
Policy Context: Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024
Report author: Mr Ola Owojori, Licensing Officer, Public Protection, Regulatory Services and
Assurance, 0207 926 1649, oowojori@lambeth.gov.uk
APPLICATION SUMMARY
This is an application for a Time-Limited Premises Licence to allow authorisation for the provision of a
range of regulated entertainment and the sale of alcohol on Monday to Sunday from 25 April 2022 to 23
December 2022 to a capacity of 3,000 persons (including staff, contractors, artists and performers).

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Licensing Objectives (chapter 5, pages 9 to 15 and Appendices 1 to 4, pages 41 to 45 of the
policy)
The Licensing Objective engaged by this application is:


The prevention of public nuisance

Cumulative Impact Policy (policy 7, pages 26 to 27 and appendix 10, page 58 of the policy)
The premises are not situated in the Clapham Cumulative Impact Policy Zone.
Types of Premises and Recommended Hours (appendix 5, pages 46 to 47 and appendix 6, pages
48 to 50 of the policy)
The premises are classified within Lambeth’s Licensing Policy (2019 - 2024) as festivals and outdoor
events. The premises are located within the South Bank Strategic Cultural Area.

Page 12
The recommended start time within the policy for the premises on Friday to Sunday and Bank Holiday
Monday is 11:00 hours. There is no specific start time recommended for the premises operating Monday
to Thursday.
The recommended end time within the policy for the premises on Friday and Saturday is 23:00 hours,
and 22:00 hours on Sunday and Bank Holiday Monday. There is no recommended end time for the
premises operating on Monday to Thursday.
Note: The hours above are not absolute and are intended as a guide for applicants to consider when
completing their operating schedules. Each application will be considered on its own merits. Applicants
seeking hours later than those indicated in the Policy should provide detailed evidence as to why their
application will not have a negative impact on the licensing objectives.

Page 13
1.

APPLICATION

1.1

This is an application for a time-limited premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act
2003 to operate between 25 April 2022 to 23 December 2022.

1.2

The applicant is seeking authorisation for the following licensable activities and times:
Plays, Films, Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment, Live Music, Recorded Music,
Performances of Dance and Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance (Indoors and Outdoors)
Indoor Sporting Events (Indoors)
Monday - Sunday 10:00 - 23:00
Sale by Retail of Alcohol (On and Off the premises)
Monday - Sunday 10:00 - 22.45

1.3

The opening hours for the premises are proposed as:
Monday - Sunday 09:00 – 23:30

1.4

A copy of the application form and plan are attached as Annex A.

1.5

The applicant has proposed a set of conditions, which the Responsible Authorities are content
with, as no representation has been submitted against the application by any of the Responsible
Authorities. A list of the conditions is attached to the report as Annex E.

2.

REPRESENTATION

2.1

One representation has been received against the application. This was from a local resident.

2.2

The representation is based on the licensing objective of the prevention of public nuisance. A copy
of the representation was provided to the applicant and is attached as Annex B.

2.3

The representation highlights concern in respect of loud music from the premises which they stated
has had a negative impact on them previously.

2.4

The applicants are scheduled to meet with the objector to address the concerns raised in their
representation.

2.5

The last date for making representations was on 30th March 2022.

3.

CURRENT LICENCE

3.1

There is currently no licence in place for the premises, however, previous time-limited premises
licences have been granted for this location. A copy of the licence issued to the applicant in 2021
is attached to the report as Annex C.

4.

BACKGROUND HISTORY

4.1

The premises licence in 2021 was granted under officer delegated authority following the
agreement of conditions between the applicant and Responsible Authorities.

Page 14
4.2

The event site had been used previously for outdoor events and it is in close proximity to
residential properties.

4.3

The premises are on a double yellow-lined road with no dedicated car parking for patrons
visiting on event days.

4.4

The premises are within easy access to Waterloo underground and railway stations including 24
hours public buses towards several London destinations.

4.5

A noise complaint was made against the premises in October 2021 by a local resident which
could not be resolved by the time events ended on 23rd December 2021. A copy of the noise
complaint is attached to the report as Annex D.

5.

OBSERVATIONS

5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) which are particularly relevant to this application
and the representations received are Chapters:
2)
The Licensing Objectives;
3)
Licensable Activities;
8)
Applications for Premises Licenses;
9)
Determining Applications;
10) Conditions Attached to Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates; and
16) Regulated Entertainment.

5.2

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are particularly relevant to this application and
the representations are Sections:
Chapter 5 - The Licensing Objectives
Policy 1 - Process for applications
Policy 3 - Partnership working
Policy 4 - Enforcement approach
Policy 5 – Outside spaces
Policy 8 – Hours of sale and locations
Policy 13 – Resource impact
Policy 15 - Violence Against Women and Girls
Policy 17 – Dispersal and entry (note, erroneously marked as Policy 16)
Appendix 1: Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Appendix 2: Public Safety
Appendix 3: Prevention of Public Nuisance
Appendix 4: Protection of Children from Harm
Appendix 5: Types of premises and recommended hours
Appendix 6: Types of premises and potential impact
Appendix 7: Major, District and Local Town Centres and South Bank Strategic Cultural Area
Appendix 8: What to expect from a Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing

Page 15
6.

CONCLUSION
Members are required to consider the application in light of all of the relevant information, and, if
approval is given, may attach such conditions appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.
The options available to Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Grant the application as it currently stands;
Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives;
Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the application
relates;
To refuse to specify the individual named in the applications as the DPS; or
Reject the application.

Page 16
CONSULTATION INFORMATION

Department(s) or Organisation(s)

Consulted
(Y/N)

Health & Safety Section (internal)
Noise service (internal)
Social Services (internal)
Licensing Service (internal)
Planning (internal)
Trading Standards (internal)
Fire Authority (external)
Police Licensing Unit (external)
Health Authority (external)

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

Date
Response
Received
28/03/2022
15/03/2022
-

Comments
summarized in
report (Y/N)
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

APPENDICES AND REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

Appendices

Reference documents
Local Government Act 1972 – Access to
information documents used in the preparation of
this report

Annex A – Application form and plan
Annex B – Representation
Annex C – Previous Licence
Annex D - Noise Complaint
Annex E - List of Conditions
1. The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”).
2. Amended Guidance issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the
Guidance”).
3. Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 2024 (“the Policy”).

Page 17
Annex A

1

Page 18

2

Page 19

3

Page 20

4

Page 21

5

Page 22

6

Page 23

7

Page 24

8

Page 25

9

Page 26

10

Page 27

11

Page 28

12

Page 29

13

Page 30

14

Page 31

15

Page 32

16

Page 33

17

Page 34

18

Page 35

19

Page 36

20

Page 37

21

Page 38

22

Page 39

23

Page 40

24

Page 41

25

Page 42

26

Page 43
Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:
•
does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
•
is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.
Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this by providing with this application
copies or scanned copies of the following documents (which do not need to be certified).
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

•

An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

•

An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.
A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•
•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

•

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A full birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK which includes the name(s) of at least one of the holder’s
parents or adoptive parents, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

27

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 44
Continued from previous page...

•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

•

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

•

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 17(3) or 18A
(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2006, to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

•

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

•

Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

•
•

evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,
evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
•
evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
(i)
working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii)
self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii)
studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv)
self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.
Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work.
If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.
Section 20 of 21
NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT
28

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 45
Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

•

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

•

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

•

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

•

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

•

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

o
o
o
o

o

•

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
o
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

29

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 46

30

Page 47

31

Page 48
Continued from previous page...

IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION
IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE
IS DISQUALIFIED

32

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

SL

SL

Upper: Pepp Back Office
Lower: Pepp Staff Office

Bike
Parking
x12

24ft

400kVa

Generators

24ft

Upper: Falcon
Lower: Welfare

PP

3000L
Fuel
Tank

6m

400kVa

1

Upper: DR (Split)
Lower: Medics

4

X2 Gas Cages

1.2m

Archway
Archway

FENCE - STAGE BARRIER

SBC

FENCE - PEDESTRIAN BARRIER
FENCE - TIMBER HOARD
FENCE - SMART - HOARD

Trader
12
(coffee)

Sponsor Bar
2 / Activation
Space

0

0
0

0

0

0

0
0

Sponsor Bar
9 / Activation
Space

AREA - ARENA CAP
AREA - OUT OF BOUNDS
PITCH - CONCESSION
PITCH - MARKET
PITCH - SPONSOR
PITCH - CHARITY

28
8m

GATE NUMBER & WIDTH
FESTOON

TL

TOWER LIGHT

FLOODLIGHT SPREAD

Ladies

Trader
10

Stage

Trader
11

SUPATRAK PANEL

SBC

0

Decking
15m x 9m

Pole

Trader
9

Sponsor Bar
8 Space

Bar Storage

0.5m Cable Route, 1.5m Walkway

Structure 3
Stretch Tent
With Decking
27.5m x10m

0

Ramp

Theatre Format = x228 Seats

Trader
7

Water tanks

0

Ramp

Trader
4

Trader
8

Bar 7
Structure 1
27m x12m

TRAKWAY - BOX PANEL

Cycle Hire Sta

Stairs

Sponsor Bar
5 / Activation
Space

Trader
6

TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT - WATER BARRIER

Ladies

Page 49

New
Decking

Gents

Sponsor Bar 6 /
Activation Space

Entrance &
Exit Arch

tion

Sponsor Bar
4/ Activation
Space

0

Trees

KEY

FENCE - T-SHIELD

2

Bar 10
Ladies

Ladies

0.5m Cable Route, 1.5m Walkway

Gents

Gents

Bar Storage

ingle

SB04

Theatre Format = x372 Seats

New
Decking

2.5m

M ud and Sh

SB03

FENCE - HERAS

Stage

Ram p

Trader
5

PC

SB03

FENCE - MET BARRIER

Decking/Structure
Roof sheets off
when weather
appropriate
12m x 9m

Ramp

Bar
1

4+2

Structure 2
Summer = 36m x12m + 12m x 9m Deck
Winter = 45m x12m

Sponsor Bar
3 / Activation
Space

Bar 1 - Queens Walk
Off Sales

24ft

Bar 12

Sponsor Bar 11
/ Activation
Space

Project Title:

SB06

Between the Bridges
3

Sheet Title:

1.2m

FS

2022 - Site Overview
Client

4 .1 m

Peppermint & Marcus Weedon
Venue

South Bank
Show Date(s)

2022

33

Project Director

Scale

1:500 @ A3

Dave Grindle
Project Manager

Issue Date

05/01/2022

Sarah Cook
Drawn By

Issue Number

Iain Rogers
Project ID

BTB22

Sheet No.

001

5

33
This drawing is confidential and should not be copied or distributed without permission of Loudsound or the
Client.
All dimensions in Metres (m) unless stated otherwise. Critical dimensions should be checked on site. Written
dimensions take precedence over scaled dimensions.
Please ensure you are working from the most up to date version.

www.loudsound.net

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 51
Annex B

Comments for Licensing Application 22/00045/PRMTLE
Application Summary
Application Number: 22/00045/PRMTLE
Address: Public Car Park Belvedere Road London SE1 8XZ
Proposal: Premises Licence (Time Limited Event)
Case Officer: Mr Ola Owojori
Customer Details
Name: Not Available
Address: Not Available
Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour/Public
Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application
Comment Reasons:
- Objection to application
Comment:30/03/2022 12:08 AM Licensing objectives - Preventing public nuisance
Dear Lambeth Council
As a local resident in close proximity to the 'Public Car Park Belvedere Road London SE1 8XZ' I
would like to state my objection to this Premises Licence specifically regarding the music licence.
The planned outside music event is mere 65 meters from three residential tower blocks in Casson
Square where I live with my young family.
Between the Bridges operated a similar licence last year from May 2021 to December 2021.
During this time my family and I were affected by the loud music and the loud DJ PA system which
operated Wednesday to Sunday until 11pm on a weekly basis.
The loud music disturbed us to such an extent that it is significantly affected the enjoyment of our
home. Every week we had to put up with the sound of music 'thud, thud, thud, thud' in our home.
Such was the excessive level of music noise from Between the Bridges that when at home I could
often recognise and name the particular song, this was with all the windows firmly closed.
We contacted Between the Bridges on many occasions to ask that they reduce the volume but this
made little difference.
I hope you appreciate my concerns that this event is being planned again for another 6-7 months
and I ask you to reconsider in particular the outdoor music licence.

Page 52
Yours sincerely,
Local resident

Page 53

Annex C

London Borough of Lambeth
Licensing Department
PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG
Tel: 020 7926 6108
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
Premises Licence Number

Version Reference

Prem2435

21/00046/PRMTLE

Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises including Post Town & Post Code, or if none, ordnance survey map
reference or description
Between The Bridges
Hungerford Car Park
Belvedere Road
London
SE1 8XZ
Telephone number
Where the licence is time limited the dates
27th May 2021 - 23rd December 2021
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Plays
Films (indoors and outdoors)
Indoor Sporting Events
Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment (indoors and outdoors)
Live Music (indoors and outdoors)
Recorded Music (indoors and outdoors)
Performances of Dance (indoors and outdoors)
Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance (indoors and outdoors)
Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Plays
Films

Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Indoor Sporting Events
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Premises Licence

A-1

Page 54
Live Music
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Recorded Music
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Performances of Dance
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Supply of Alcohol
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 22:45

The opening hours of the premises
Monday to Sunday

09:00 - 23:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies
Alcohol may be supplied for consumption both on and off the premises.

Premises Licence

A-2

Page 55

Page 56
Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
1

MANDATORY CONDITIONS (Alcohol - on)
Condition A1.
No supply of Alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence:
(a)
(b)

At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises
Licence; or
At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his
Personal Licence is suspended.

Condition A2
Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by a person who
holds a Personal Licence.
Condition A3
(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities,
or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises—
(a)
games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold
or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise)
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing
objective;
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or
in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone,
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of
drunkenness in any favourable manner;
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of
disability).
Condition A4
The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

Premises Licence

A-4

Page 57
Condition A5
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and
either—
(a)
a holographic mark, or
(b)
an ultraviolet feature.
Condition A6
The responsible person must ensure that—
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures—
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.
Additional Mandatory Licensing Conditions, Minimum Drinks Pricing:
1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979
(b) "permitted" price is the price found by applying the formula - P=D+(DxV) where:
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c)
"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;
(d)"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act
1994.
Premises Licence

A-5

Page 58
3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken
to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.
4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2
on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second
day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Premises Licence

A-6

Page 59
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
1.

The maximum capacity of the site excluding staff, contractors, artists, performers shall be
3000 persons at any one time.

2.

At least 6 Weeks prior to the event, the Premises Licence holder will produce a draft Event
Management & Operation Plan (EMOP) containing detail appropriate to the Event. This will
include;
• A detailed Site Plan
• Crowd management plan
• Alcohol management plan
• Details surrounding Ingress and egress management arrangements
• Sound Management Plan
• Security Operation Plan
• Event safety plan (including evacuation details)
• Event risk assessment
• Child & Vulnerable Persons Policy
• Transport and Traffic Management arrangements
• Medical Management Plan
• Extreme Weather Contingency Plan
• Details surrounding Waste & Sustainability arrangements
• Agency Contact Details
• Details surrounding Signage and Lighting provisions
The final site plans submitted shall be a full site plans including all the facilities at
the event. The activity site and bars shall be numbered for the avoidance of doubt.

3.

At least 4 weeks prior to the event, the Premises Licence holder will produce a final Event
Management & Operation Plan (EMOP). Both EMPO and Site Plans must be approved by
SAG and Metropolitan Police Licencing prior to the commencement of the event.

4.

Any minor changes to the location of amenities within the site, can be varied under a minor
variation, this excludes increasing the licensable area, increasing the number of bars or
points of sale for alcohol, increasing the number of stages and anything else of a material
change which should be amended through the full variation process.

5.

Control and management of the capacity shall be agreed in advance with SAG.

6.

The Applicant shall ensure that all promoters, contractors and other personal involved with
the event are made aware of any condition contained within the licence and attached
conditions that will affect their involvement in the event.

7.

The contact details of all key contacts of the organiser's management team shall be
provided to all responsible authorities at least two weeks before the event. There must be a
clear framework of information flow procedure to enable the right people to receive the
correct information.

8.

Phase 1 - Summer - Between the Bridges - the event will take place over the full site.
Phase 2 - Winter at Between the Bridges - the event will take place over the full site.
Both phases will be operated under the same premises licence.

9.

The event will be delivered by Between the Bridges Ltd in conjunction with their production
company Loud Sound Ltd. Between The Bridges will feature a unique mix of London's finest
foods and bars. The event will also have content from local promoters, artists and creative,
two interactive game spaces, and an outdoor stage programmed with a mix of DJs, cabaret,
and live music. Tickets for the interactive games will be available to purchase both online in
advance and onsite at the activity. The event will consist of 2 phases for Summer and
Winter, with the main part of the site closing to the public in between these phases so the
change overs can be completed. The Winter phase will start with a Halloween theme after
which the site will be re-dressed for a winter theme.

Premises Licence

A-7

Page 60

10.

The premises will be in a former car park situated between Belvedere Road and the south
bank of the River Thames. The premises is entirely laid to tarmac, with two different levels,
and is part of a current construction development plot. It is not open to the public and is
secured with a solid hoarding and heras fence perimeter. This fenced perimeter will remain
in place during our show open phases with access and egress to the premises being by
means of a number of gates in the perimeter.

11.

The organisers, in conjunction with the Metropolitan Police and the appointed security and
stewarding contractor will put in place such plans as necessary to control the ingress and
egress of the large volume of persons attending the event. This will include a highly visible
security and stewarding. They will develop a plan to prevent and respond to antisocial
behaviour caused by visitors to the event and undertake to commit the required resources
to implement it.

12.

The bars on site shall have a dedicated bar manager or supervisor and team who shall be
conversant with the requirements and responsibilities for the sale of alcohol and shall be
given written designation of their responsibilities.

13.

The dedicated bar manager or supervisor for the bars shall directly brief, instruct, monitor
and support their staff in ensuring the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 are adhered
to at all times.

14.

All drinking vessels in which drinks are served shall be of strengthened glass (tempered
glassware) in a design whereby in the event of breakage the glass will fragment and no
sharp edges are left. Alternatively, plastic type drinking vessels to above breakage
specifications may be used. No glass bottles shall remain within reach of patrons (ie
champagne).

15.

Any mobile dispensing servers (MDS) will be accompanied by persons not involved directly
in serving alcohol. These persons ('shepherds') will be responsible, jointly with the sellers
and security personnel, for ensuing that mobile units comply with the Challenge 25 policy
used on site, including preventing proxy sales; and for the prevention of sales to intoxicated
customers.

16.

Alcohol sales will be approved by the Designated Premises Supervisor. A letter of
authorisation will be supplied and retained at each bar.

17.

The Designated Premises Supervisor shall close bars serving alcohol in the event of any
serious breach of the licensing objectives or if so requested by an authorised licensing
officer.

18.

There shall be no drinks promotions, i.e. two for the price of one.

19.

In the event of on sales, members of the public will be prevented from removing all open
vessels of alcohol from the event site by stewards at the event exit points. Bins will be
placed at these locations to allow the disposal of any open containers.

20.

The organisers are committed to the responsible and legal sale of alcohol and do not
tolerate provision of alcohol to children.

21.

The contracted bar operator is required to make an undertaking to enforce the Challenge 25
policy for all sales of alcohol, requiring approved photographic ID. The security and event
team will maintain vigilance for instances whereby alcohol is purchased by adults for supply
to children and this criminal activity will be considered grounds for ejection.

22.

The promoters will facilitate and support licensing inspections if appropriate.

23.

The Dedicated bar Manager or Supervisor shall ensure that nobody under the age of 18 is
employed to sell alcohol.

Premises Licence

A-8

Page 61

24.

In the event of Off Sales only "all sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises must be
in a sealed container only" (sealed containers meaning manufacturers seal of that vessel).

25.

Any alcohol sold for consumption off the premises from a market stall must be sold in a
sealed container (sealed containers meaning a manufacturers seal of the vessel) as a gift or
as part of a gift hamper.

26.

For the 2020 event there shall be a maximum of 2 bars one shall be for on sales only and
one shall be for off sales only during phase 1. There shall be a maximum of 6 bars for on
sales only and one for off sale only during phase 3 and 4 of the premises licence.

27.

For the 2021 event we are proposing a maximum of 9 on sale bars + 1 bar serving off sales.
Four of those bars are the small 'shacks' or 'huts' between 3 - 5m frontage serving a limited
range of products rather than large multi dispense bars.

28.

In addition to the bars internal to the event site there will be an externally facing bar on to
Queen's Walk, which will serve alcohol for off sales. Drinks purchased from this bar will be
sealed, but customers will be able to take them into the main event site for consumption as
long as they can produce a receipt as proof of purchase. No other alcoholic drinks will be
permitted to be taken into the event site.

29.

Customers will not be allowed to leave the event site in position of any alcohol beverages. All
exit points shall be monitored by event staff and/all security staff.

30.

A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as
driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.

31.

Signage advertising the aforementioned proof of age scheme shall be prominently displayed
throughout the premises with a particular emphasis on the alcohol display area and service
area.

32.

The organisers will implement a Child and Vulnerable Persons Policy which will include
provisions if a child or vulnerable person is found or reported missing. This will include liaison
at the planning stages with the Police to ensure the correct questions are asked at the outset
by event staff should details of the missing person need to be escalated to the Police.

33.

Any person under the age of 18 years, found within the boundaries of the licensable areas to
be in possession of alcohol or deemed to be intoxicated shall be escorted by Security Staff to
a "safe waiting area". His or her parents/responsible adult will be contacted to collect such a
person and remove him/her from the event.

34.

Age restrictions may apply to each event day, the age restrictions for each event day will be
agreed in advance with the SAG and will be contained within the EMOP each year.

35.

Different events or activities in certain venues on site may have separate age restrictions access to these venues will also be controlled to ensure relevant age limits are respected. If
some activities do have age restrictions, this will be advertised in publicity or at point of
entry. These events or activities will be agreed by SAG and will be contained in the EMOP.

36.

There will be no adult or other unsuitable activity taking place during the event that would be
visible to children passing the event.

37.

The Applicant shall contact the building management companies for all residential properties
in the immediate area, in order to notify them of the event, including details of the event
timings and community hotline number.

Premises Licence

A-9

Page 62
38.

The community hotline number will also be on display around the perimeter of the premises
during the event.

39.

All efforts should be made to prevent or reduce light pollution, especially to residential
properties in the vicinity.

40.

All site deliveries and collections shall be undertaken with due care, attention and diligently
to minimise disturbance to residents and noise sensitive premises within the vicinity.

41.

Details of any complaints received through the noise hotline shall be recorded and be made
available to responsible authorities if requested. Complaints logged by residents or
businesses in respect of noise and other issues shall be addressed within 24 hours and kept
on record for at least 12 months following the event.

42.

The Applicant, Head of Security and Event Safety Officer shall make themselves fully
conversant with the current Health and Safety industry guidance.

43.

Provision will be made to allow communication of emergency procedures and issues relating
to the health, safety and welfare of the people within the venue. This will be done through
signage and by event staff.

44.

All temporary structures will be lit internally, and adequate temporary public lighting will be
present on the site when necessary.

45.

Suitable and sufficient lighting shall be provided to the event site especially as it is getting
dark, such that all health and safety information and notice signage can be easily seen and
read and at the close of the event, to enable visitors to leave the site safely.

46.

The organiser will carry out an analysis of sanitary provision needs for the event using
current industry guidance as a basis for determining that provision required. Suitable and
sufficient sanitary provision shall then be provided.

47.

All emergency exits, toilets and first aid posts shall be clearly indicated, such that it is visible
from all parts of the licensed area.

48.

In the unlikely event that the show has to stop, which may be temporary whilst a problem is
resolved or the first step in an evacuation of the site either due to crowd related issues, or
structural collapse, off site events, extreme weather conditions or the direction of the
Metropolitan Police, Fire Brigade or safety officer, the Applicant shall ensure that all
concerned know what their role is in any scenario and that the plans can be affected
immediately.

49.

In the event of an emergency, the PA system will be used to broadcast announcements. In
the event of either the PA system or the power supply failing, there will be loud hailers
available.

50.

The event site shall be cleared of all vehicles before the public are allowed on site until 30
minutes after the site is cleared of all event-goers.

51.

Should it become absolutely necessary for a vehicle to move or be moved either for
emergency or serious public health hazards, the safety officer shall liaise with park officers
and the vehicle shall be escorted at all times on to, or off the site and going at speed of not
more than 5mph.

52.

The Premises Licence holder will produce:
* event risk assessment / fire risk assessment
* schedule of temporary structures including wind calculations
* application for section 30 (if structures are applicable)
* questionnaire and inspection schedule for food traders
* rules for site contractors.

Premises Licence

A - 10

Page 63
RVPs shall be agreed with the SAG and identified on any site plan(s) before the event. Should these
change in any way or form, the facts should be made known to the first aid providers, head of
security, safety officer and the plan(s) amended accordingly.
53.

All concession caterers must have suitable firefighting equipment, suitable hand washing
facilities and sanitary facilities for staff.

54.

All bars shall be fitted with fire extinguishers. Employees are only to operate the
extinguisher if they consider that it is safe to do so and have been trained.

55.

LPG cylinders shall only be used by the concessions and managed on a basis of one cylinder
in use per appliance plus one spare. All other cylinders shall be stored in agreed cylinder
store at strategic points on site. The Safety Officer shall ensure that the stores are clearly
marked on the site plans in the Event Control Room and that they are monitored at all times
for correct use. The store shall be clearly signed with "flammable gas" and "no smoking"
signs. Suitable and sufficient firefighting equipment shall be sited nearby.

56.

All gas installations shall have current Gas Safe compliance certificates, copies of which shall
be provided to the Safety Officer and shall be produced on request by authorised officers.

57.

There shall be adequate fire separation between units of approximately 1.5m to prevent fire
spread. Routes for fire appliances shall have a road width of not less than 3.7m clear and at
gates of not less than 3.1m and clear height of not less than 3.7m. Routes provided for fire
appliances should be such that no part of the event where firefighting may be required is
greater than 50m from a fire lane or existing suitable thoroughfare. These are to be clearly
signed and marked on the final site plan.

58.

The appropriate type and number of firefighting equipment shall be provided throughout the
site. Locations and numbers will be specified in the Event Management Plan.

59.

The Safety Officer will conduct a site inspection prior to opening on day of the event.
Stage/Tents/Temporary Demountable Structures - all built structures shall have a
completion Premises Licence A - 9 certificate issued by a competent person from the
supplying company and provided to the Safety Officer. All tents shall be supplied with the
appropriate fire retardancy certificate.

60.

Pit barriers - these shall have ratings of at least 5kN/M2 and shall be used in areas of high
crowd density such as front of stage and around structures in close proximity to the stage.

61.

All temporary electrical supplies, including all generators, distribution cabling and end
connection for the arena shall be installed by specialist contractors in accordance to BS7909,
fitted with RDC or RCBO protection where necessary and suitably earthed in accordance
with the site plan and power specifications.

62.

No petrol generators are allowed on site.

63.

All portable electrical equipment and temporary installations associated with all work shall be
protected by a Residual Current Device (RCD) and suitably earthed.

64.

All electrical equipment must be isolated when not in use.

65.

All portable electrical equipment brought on site must be subject to the appropriate Portable
Appliance Testing (PAT) and records of these kept on site and available for inspection if
required by authorised officers.

66.

All temporary electrical works must have an appropriate electrical sign off certificate issued
at the time of works to the safety officer and be available for inspection if required by
authorised officers.

Premises Licence

A - 11

Page 64
67.

The local authority shall be informed of the intended use of pyrotechnics in advance. This
shall be in form of written notification and should contain details of quantity, effect type,
drawing or set plans showing the positions of each effect. A demonstration may be
requested for any unfamiliar effects or if there are any concerns.

68.

Public entrance point shall be monitored and ingress and egress shall be controlled by
clickers that will be recorded and produced for inspection upon request by any of the
responsible authorities.

69.

All event activity will make provision for the management of access and egress to the site
considering the maximum LICENSED specified capacity.

70.

The organisers undertake to provide cleaning services to remove litter and waste, to apply
appropriate protocols to control spillage or other contamination and to respect the natural
and built environment of the site.

71.

The Applicant shall ensure that sufficient, suitable and adequate purpose-built refuse
receptacles are provided to the site for the duration of the event.

72.

The Applicant shall ensure that cleaning teams are deployed where necessary, prior to,
during and after the event, both within the event site, the wider park and neighbouring
streets and roads as specified in the Waste and Sustainability Management Plan.

73.

The Applicant shall ensure that where necessary during the night, the waste management
company deploy cleaning teams to clean the site and ensure that all waste is removed from
site either by the next opening time or after breakdown.

74.

A suitable and sufficient risk assessment shall be carried out to determine the adequate level
of waste infrastructure to be provided at the event, which may include yard skips, bins RCV
waste trucks.

75.

The Applicant shall ensure that waste management operatives litter pick and remove all
waste and infrastructures and ensure that all waste equipment is removed from site. All grey
wastewater toilet effluent shall be the responsibility of the organiser and arrangement shall
be sought to ensure the correct transfer and disposal away from site.

76.

All medical provision planning shall take into consideration the likelihood of a major incident
and shall delegate powers to the statutory identified body for such major incident, e.g. the
Police and the London Ambulance Service.

77.

The Applicant shall carry out a suitable and sufficient risk assessment, as well as use current
industry guidance to determine the level of first aid provision for the event.

78.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the Lambeth Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24
hours of the incident and will record the following:
a) Any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
b) Any incidents of disorder
c) All seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
d) Any faults in the CCTV system and or searching equipment
e) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol including date, time and name of staff member

79.
80.

Premises Licence

f) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service
g) All First Aid provided
A record shall be made and kept of anybody that receives first aid on site. These records
shall be retained by the PLH for at least 12 months following the event.
The Applicant will agree a policing plan with the Metropolitan Police's events team. The
Applicant will have a clear and definitive policy on the use or possession of illegal substances
at the event and will cooperate fully with other authorities to implement this.
A - 12

Page 65

81.

The Applicant will provide anti-crime and drugs awareness advice to ticket holders. Security
will not permit illegal substances into the venue. Any illegal substances found will be
confiscated where possible. Security are to look out for signs of illegal substance use or
illegal substance dealing. The Head of Security shall be informed through the Event Control
of any person found to be dealing illegal substances. Police shall be requested to collect
such persons from the security office. When a crime or other incident requiring Police
attendance is reported to or discovered by a security operative, they shall obtain as much
detail as possible with particular importance being placed on identifying, victims, suspects,
witnesses and scenes of crime.

82.

A reputable and experienced SIA-accredited security and stewarding company will be
appointed to ensure public safety and to prevent crime and disorder.

83.

A detailed Crowd Management Plan will be drawn up by the appointed stewarding
contractor, which will specify numbers of staff and roles, where SIA qualified staff are
required and emergency procedures (e.g. evacuation of the site). This plan will integrate
with the EMOP for the event and will be produced in conjunction with the Metropolitan
Police, the designated security contractor and the event organisers.

84.

All activity within the licensed area will be appropriately managed with security and
stewards. A pre- agreed level of professional stewarding and security personnel will have a
designated responsibility to maintain a safe environment for members of the public
attending the event.

85.

The organiser will ensure that security and bar staff are trained to recognize and monitor
drunkenness and refuse service to customers who have consumed excessive alcohol and
trained to handle potential troublemakers and diffuse difficult situations.

86.

The organiser will encourage vigilance among staff to supervise customers in all parts of the
premises and will employ sufficient staff to manage the number of people waiting to be
served in any bar areas.

87.

Event security and stewarding will be briefed to be vigilant and identify suspicious behaviour
and take appropriate action to assist in the prevention of theft and robbery and the
prevention of crime and disorder within the premises.

88.

The organiser will use screening on the entry points to the event to exercise the right to
refuse entry to any unauthorized or disorderly person. To ensure security and integrity of
the site, a level of search as pre-agreed with the responsible authorities prior to the event,
shall be instigated. Pedestrian flow rates and queues shall be monitored throughout ingress
to establish attendance.

89.

Security and stewards will ensure that emergency vehicle access to the site is maintained at
all times.

90.

Security and stewards will be on duty from the beginning of the site build until the
completion of the site breakdown. Numbers will be agreed with members of the SAG.

91.

All items of plant and machinery are to be parked in a secure area when not in use with
regular patrols by security staff.

92.

The final sound management plan must be submitted for approval by the SAG a minimum of
two weeks prior to the first event date.

93.

An agreed noise level will be set prior to the event, with the agreement of SAG and Public
Protection, this shall be monitored throughout the duration of the licence and can be
amended should this be required by the relevant authorities. The agreed level shall be noted
by both the council noise officer and the licensee or his delegated nominee.

Premises Licence

A - 13

Page 66
94.

No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall emanate
from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises which
gives rise to a Premises Licence A - 10 nuisance to nearby residents. Any complaints shall be
remedied within 48 hours and details to be recorded in the incident book including the
action taken by the Licence Holder/DPS/manager.

95.

The noise consultant shall liaise between all parties including PLH, promoter, sound
engineers and sound equipment suppliers, Environmental Health and the Licensing Authority
on all matters relating to the noise control prior to the event.

96.

The organiser will employ the services of a qualified noise consultant. The noise consultant
will produce a Sound Management Plan that will detail measures that should be put in place
to manage music noise on site and minimise disruption to local residents. The plan will
include, but not be limited to, the following information: The music noise limits / the
monitoring locations / music noise times and duration / sound checks and rehearsal times
and durations, including atypical events / noise control procedures and music noise levels
monitoring methodology / complaints monitoring and action / compliance reporting.

97.

There shall be unrestricted access to relevant areas for local authority officials for the
purpose of sound level measurements, communication with the noise consultant and sound
engineers and monitoring licence conditions.

98.

Prior to the event, a sound propagation test will take place. The exact times for this will be
agreed with Local Authority Officials in advance. The purpose of this text is to set
appropriate control limits at the mixer position. The sound system shall be configured and
operated in a similar manner as intended for the event. The sound source used for the test
shall be similar in character to the music likely to be played at the event.

99.

The licensee shall ensure that the promoter, sound equipment suppliers and all individual
sound engineers are informed of the sound control limits and that any instructions from the
noise consultant regarding noise levels shall be implemented.

100.

The noise consultant shall monitor noise levels at mixer desk positions and advise sound
engineers to ensure agreed limits are not broken, where possible.

101.

Noisy construction works audible beyond the site boundary shall only be undertaken
between the hours of 08:00 - 18:00 hours Monday to Saturday and 08:00 - 13:00 hours on
Sunday, any works outside these times must be agreed with Lambeth Licensing and
Environmental Health (Public Protection). If works or operations are agreed outside of the
above hours a contact telephone number must be provided for the person in charge of
these operations.

102.

The Applicant shall engage with the responsible authorities and local residents to ensure
that the operation of the events is undertaken in such a way as to minimise public nuisance.

Premises Licence

A - 14

Page 67
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
N/A

Premises Licence

A - 15

Page 68
Annex 4 – Plans
Phase 1

Premises Licence

A - 16

Page 69
Phase 2

Premises Licence

A - 17

Page 70
London Borough of Lambeth
Licensing Department
PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG
Tel: 020 7926 6108
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary
Premises Licence Number

Version Reference

Prem2435

21/00046/PRMTLE

Premises Details
Postal address of premises including Post Town & Post Code, or if none, ordnance survey map
reference or description
Between the Bridges
Hungerford Car Park
Belvedere Road
London
SE1 8XZ
Telephone number
Where the licence is time limited the dates
27th May 2021 - 23rd December 2021
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Plays
Films (indoors and outdoors)
Indoor Sporting Events
Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment (indoors and outdoors)
Live Music (indoors and outdoors)
Recorded Music (indoors and outdoors)
Performances of Dance (indoors and outdoors)
Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance (indoors and outdoors)
Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Plays
Films

Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Indoor Sporting Events
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Premises Licence Summary

B - 18

Page 71
Live Music
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Recorded Music
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Performances of Dance
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 23:00

Supply of Alcohol
Monday - Sunday

10:00 - 22:45

The opening hours of the premises
Monday to Sunday

09:00 - 23:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies
Alcohol may be supplied for consumption both on and off the premises.
Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence
Between The Bridges Ltd
Edinburgh House, Lower Ground 04
154 - 182 Kennington Lane
London
SE11 5DP

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
Registered Company Number

12422407

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply or
sale by retail of alcohol
Michael Gwyther

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited
Restricted

Premises Licence Summary

B - 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 73
Annex D
From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Ola Owojori
Bina Patel
RE: Complaint to the event "Between the Bridge"
20 October 2021 16:17:04
Communication e-mail.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Ola,
Thank you for transferring the message.
Please find attached communication with the event organizer. As you can see from the attached
e-mail, I did NOT decline their offer. I wanted to confirm the procedures of noise analysis
beforehand, but they did not replied to this e-mail.
In my view, this problem cannot be solved between the event organizer and me. I would like to
ask the Lambeth Council to visit the place regularly (hopefully every Friday) and monitor the
noise level.
Thank you again for dealing with this matter.
Best Regards,

From: Ola Owojori <OOwojori@lambeth.gov.uk>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 4:01 PM
To:
Cc: Bina Patel <BPatel@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Complaint to the event "Between the Bridge"
Dear Mr

,

Further to your complaint, please see the response below from the licence holder and can you
confirm whether the request to install a sound monitor for further assessment has been made
and if not are you minded to consider this.
Regards
Ola

Thanks for forwarding the complaint from
we have been in regular
correspondence with him since Between The Bridges opened in May.
In addition to the communication below, our Sound Management Team have offered to install a

Page 74
temporary sound monitor in his premises inorder to capture specific sound data from his
property. This would enable us to understand in greater detail if there are certain environmental
conditions, or times of day which are also impacting his experience of the sound levels.
Unfortunately Mr
has declined this offer.
Between the Bridges is currently in the turnaround build period, and therefore no PA is currently
in use until the 25th October. However, once the site reopens in the new layout, which includes
the PA positioned inside enclosed structures, we can offer again to install a temporary sound
monitor in
property.
I understand a member of the Licensing Team visited the Site on Friday with regards to the
Sound levels and no breaches were found.
Please let me know if you require any further information.
Thanks
Lucy

From:
Sent: 18 October 2021 15:06
To: Ola Owojori <OOwojori@lambeth.gov.uk>
Cc: Bina Patel <BPatel@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Complaint to the event "Between the Bridge"
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Ola,
Thank you for focusing on this matter and visiting the place.
Yes, they are now temporally closed and will re-start from 28 Oct after renovation. (According to
their home page: https://betweenthebridges.co.uk/)
I’m worry about their loud music at Halloween events as I have a very important examination
around these dates.
If my application for reviewing the license is meaningless as the license will be expired when
hearing is taken place, I would like to withdraw it. However, if I have other options to ask the
event organizer to turn down the volume, I appreciate if you can let me know.
Thank you again for dealing with this matter. I really appreciate your continuous monitoring the
premises.
Best Regards,

Page 75

From: Ola Owojori <OOwojori@lambeth.gov.uk>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:42 PM
To:
Cc: Bina Patel <BPatel@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Complaint to the event "Between the Bridge"
Dear

i,

The Licensing Authority was aware of your complaint recently and I have forwarded this to the
licence holder for them to investigate. I and a colleague also visited the premises on Saturday
evening, but it was closed. We can continue to follow up your complaint with the licence holder
and await their response for the time being and monitor the premises when they are open.
Please let us know your preferred option.
Regards
Ola
From:
Sent: 18 October 2021 14:20
To: Ola Owojori <OOwojori@lambeth.gov.uk>
Cc: Bina Patel <BPatel@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Complaint to the event "Between the Bridge"
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Ola,
I see, do I have any other options? If I have other options, I would like to consider them.
I just want them to turn down the music volume especially on Friday.
Best,

From: Ola Owojori <OOwojori@lambeth.gov.uk>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:09 PM
To:
Cc: Bina Patel <BPatel@lambeth.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Complaint to the event "Between the Bridge"
Dear

,

Further to my previous email, please note that the licence is valid until 23rd December 2021 and
the review hearing may not take place before the licence expires. Do you wish to try other

Page 76

Page 77

Page 78
At the end of the survey we would collect the equipment & analyse the data.

The kit must remain plugged into a mains power supply for the duration. The power consumption is typically
under 10 watts, about the same as a smartphone charger. We would recommend the monitor is in place for 14
days to get a good amount of data collection.
If you are happy to go ahead with this, we would like to arrange access for Gareth and one of his team to meet with
yourself at your property on Saturday 3rd July @ 1500. The installation takes no more than an hour and would include a
short briefing, and arrangements for collection.
We look forward to hearing from you.
Many thanks
Between The Bridges Team.

2

Page 79

Annex E Conditions
Between the Bridges 2022
Proposed conditions
1.

The maximum capacity of the site excluding staff, contractors, artists, performers
shall be 3000 persons at any one time.
2.
At least 6 Weeks prior to the event, the Premises Licence holder will produce a
draft Event Management & Operation Plan (EMOP) containing detail appropriate
to the Event. This will include;
 A detailed Site Plan
 Crowd management plan
 Alcohol management plan
 Details surrounding Ingress and egress management arrangements
 Sound Management Plan
 Security Operation Plan
 Event safety plan (including evacuation details)
 Event risk assessment
 Child & Vulnerable Persons Policy
 Transport and Traffic Management arrangements
 Medical Management Plan
 Extreme Weather Contingency Plan
 Details surrounding Waste & Sustainability arrangements
 Agency Contact Details
 Details surrounding Signage and Lighting provisions
2. The final site plans submitted shall be a full site plans including all the facilities at the
event. The activity site and bars shall be numbered for the avoidance of doubt.
3. A reputable and experienced SIA-accredited security and stewarding company will
be appointed to ensure public safety and to prevent crime and disorder.
4. A detailed Crowd Management Plan will be drawn up by the appointed stewarding
contractor, which will specify numbers of staff and roles, where SIA qualified staff
are required and emergency procedures (e.g. evacuation of the site). This plan will
integrate with the EMOP for the event and will be produced in conjunction with the
Metropolitan Police, the designated security contractor and the event organisers.
5. All activity within the licensed area will be appropriately managed with security and
stewards. A pre-agreed level of professional stewarding and security personnel will
have a designated responsibility to maintain a safe environment for members of the
public attending the event.
6. The organiser will ensure that security and bar staff are trained to recognize and
monitor drunkenness and refuse service to customers who have consumed excessive
alcohol and trained to handle potential troublemakers and diffuse difficult situations.

Page 80

7. The organiser will encourage vigilance among staff to supervise customers in all
parts of the premises and will employ sufficient staff to manage the number of
people waiting to be served in any bar areas.
8. Event security and stewarding will be briefed to be vigilant and identify suspicious
behaviour and take appropriate action to assist in the prevention of theft and
robbery and the prevention of crime and disorder within the premises.
9. The organiser will use screening on the entry points to the event to exercise the right
to refuse entry to any unauthorized or disorderly person.
10. To ensure security and integrity of the site, a level of search as pre-agreed with the
responsible authorities prior to the event, shall be instigated.
11. Pedestrian flow rates and queues shall be monitored throughout ingress to establish
attendance.
12. Security and stewards will ensure that emergency vehicle access to the site is
maintained at all times.
13. Security and stewards will be on duty from the beginning of the site build until the
completion of the site breakdown. Numbers will be agreed with Licensing Authority.
14. The organisers, in conjunction with the Metropolitan Police and the appointed
security and stewarding contractor will put in place such plans as necessary to
control the ingress and egress of the large volume of persons attending the event.
This will include a highly visible security and stewarding. They will develop a plan to
prevent and respond to antisocial behaviour caused by visitors to the event and
undertake to commit the required resources to implement it.
15. The bars on site shall have a dedicated bar manager or supervisor and team who
shall be conversant with the requirements and responsibilities for the sale of alcohol
and shall be given written designation of their responsibilities.
16. The dedicated bar manager or supervisor for the bars shall directly brief, instruct,
monitor and support their staff in ensuring the requirements of the Licensing Act
2003 are adhered to at all times.
17. Any mobile dispensing servers (MDS) will be accompanied by persons not involved
directly in serving alcohol. These persons ('shepherds') will be responsible, jointly
with the sellers and security personnel, for ensuing that mobile units comply with
the Challenge 25 policy used on site, including preventing proxy sales; and for the
prevention of sales to intoxicated customers.
18. The Designated Premises Supervisor shall close bars serving alcohol in the event of
any serious breach of the licensing objectives or if so requested by an authorised
licensing officer.

Page 81

19. There shall be no drinks promotions, i.e. two for the price of one.
20. In the event of on sales, members of the public will be prevented from removing all
open vessels of alcohol from the event site by stewards at the event exit points. Bins
will be placed at these locations to allow the disposal of any open containers.
21. The organisers are committed to the responsible and legal sale of alcohol and do not
tolerate provision of alcohol to children. The contracted bar operator is required to
make an undertaking to enforce the Challenge 25 policy for all sales of alcohol,
requiring approved photographic ID. The security and event team will maintain
vigilance for instances whereby alcohol is purchased by adults for supply to children
and this criminal activity will be considered grounds for ejection. The promoters will
facilitate and support licensing inspections if appropriate.
22. The Dedicated bar Manager or Supervisor shall ensure that nobody under the age of
18 is employed to sell alcohol.
23. Sale of glass bottles for example for wine, Prosecco and Champagne etc will be
permitted within the event boundary. No glass will be permitted to be removed
from the event by patrons and there will be regular clearing of any glass bottles from
the public area. Sale of alcohol will not be in open topped glass vessels.
24. Off Sales will only take place from the single bar located closest to Hungerford
Bridge. This bar is outward facing to the general public. This bar will be closely
monitored by a dedicated Bar Manager and will also closely monitored by Security.
No alcoholic drinks from this bar will be sold in open topped glass vessels.
25. Entry is via ticket holder only. Control and management of the capacity shall be
agreed in advance with the licensing authority and police licensing. Public entrance
point shall be monitored and ingress and egress shall be controlled by clickers that
will be recorded and produced for inspection upon request by any of the responsible
authorities.
26. The Applicant, Head of Security and Event Safety Officer shall make themselves fully
conversant with the current Health and Safety industry guidance.
27. The Applicant shall ensure that all promoters, contractors and other personal
involved with the event are made aware of any condition contained within the
licence and attached conditions that will affect their involvement in the event.
28. All event activity will make provision for the management of access and egress to the
site considering the maximum Licenced specified capacity.
29. Provision will be made to allow communication of emergency procedures and issues
relating to the health, safety and welfare of the people within the venue. This will be
done through signage and by event staff.

Page 82

30. All temporary structures will be lit internally and adequate temporary public lighting
will be present on the site when necessary.
31. Suitable and sufficient lighting shall be provided to the event site especially as it is
getting dark, such that all health and safety information and notice signage can be
easily seen and read and at the close of the event, to enable visitors to leave the site
safely.
32. The organiser will carry out an analysis of sanitary provision needs for the event
using current industry guidance as a basis for determining that provision required.
Suitable and sufficient sanitary provision shall then be provided.
33. All emergency exits, toilets and first aid posts shall be clearly indicated, such that it is
visible from all parts of the licensed area.
34. In the unlikely event that the event has to stop, which may be temporary whilst a
problem is resolved or the first step in an evacuation of the site either due to crowd
related issues, or structural collapse, off site events, extreme weather conditions or
the direction of the Metropolitan Police, Fire Brigade or safety officer, the Applicant
shall ensure that all concerned know what their role is in any scenario and that the
plans can be affected immediately.
35. The contact details of all key contacts of the organiser’s management team shall be
provided to all responsible authorities at least two weeks before the event.
36. There must be a clear framework of information flow procedure to enable the right
people to receive the correct information.
37. In the event of an emergency, the PA system will be used to broadcast
announcements. In the event of either the PA system
38. or the power supply failing, there will be loud hailers available
39. The event site shall be cleared of all vehicles before the public are allowed on site
until 30 minutes after the site is cleared of all event-goers.
40. Should it become absolutely necessary for a vehicle to move or be moved either for
emergency or serious public health hazards, the vehicle shall be escorted at all times
on to, or off the site and going at speed of not more than 5mph.
41. The Premises Licence holder will produce:
 event risk assessment / fire risk assessment
 schedule of temporary structures including wind calculations
 application for section 30 (if structures are applicable)
 questionnaire and inspection schedule for food traders
 rules for site contractors.

Page 83

42. RVPs shall be identified on any site plan(s) before the event. Should these change in
any way or form, the facts should be made known to the first aid providers, head of
security, safety officer and the plan(s) amended accordingly.
43. All concession caterers must have suitable firefighting equipment, suitable hand
washing facilities and sanitary facilities for staff.
44. All bars shall be fitted with fire extinguishers. Employees are only to operate the
extinguisher if they consider that it is safe to do so and have been trained.
45. LPG cylinders shall only be used by the concessions and managed on a basis of one
cylinder in use per appliance plus one spare. All other cylinders shall be stored in
agreed cylinder store at strategic points on site. The Safety Officer shall ensure that
the stores are clearly marked on the site plans in the Event Control Room and that
they are monitored at all times for correct use. The store shall be clearly signed with
"flammable gas" and "no smoking" signs. Suitable and sufficient firefighting
equipment shall be sited nearby.
46. All gas installations shall have current Gas Safe compliance certificates, copies of
which shall be provided to the Safety Officer and shall be produced on request by
authorised officers. There shall be adequate fire separation between units of
approximately 1.5m to prevent fire spread. Routes for fire appliances shall have a
road width of not less than 3.7m clear and at gates of not less than 3.1m and clear
height of not less than 3.7m. Routes provided for fire appliances should be such that
no part of the event where firefighting may be required is greater than 50m from a
fire lane or existing suitable thoroughfare. These are to be clearly signed and marked
on the final site plan. Existing suitable thoroughfare are to be clearly signed and
marked on the site plan.The appropriate type and number of firefighting equipment
shall be provided throughout the site. Locations and numbers will be specified in the
Event Management Plan.
47. The Safety Officer will conduct a site inspection prior to opening on day of the event.
48. Stage/Tents/Temporary Demountable Structures - all built structures shall have a
completion certificate issued by a competent person from the supplying company
and provided to the Safety Officer. All tents shall be supplied with the appropriate
fire retardancy certificate.
49. Pit barriers - these shall have ratings of at least 5kN/M2 and shall be used in areas of
high crowd density such as front of stage and around structures in close proximity to
the stage.
50. All temporary electrical supplies, including all generators, distribution cabling and
end connection for the arena shall be
51. installed by specialist contractors in accordance to BS7909, fitted with RDC or RCBO
protection where necessary and suitably earthed in accordance with the site plan
and power specifications.

Page 84

52. No petrol generators are allowed on site.
53. All portable electrical equipment and temporary installations associated with all
work shall be protected by a Residual Current Device (RCD) and suitably earthed.
54. All electrical equipment must be isolated when not in use.
55. All portable electrical equipment brought on site must be subject to the appropriate
Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) and records of these kept on site and available for
inspection if required by authorised officers.
56. All temporary electrical works must have an appropriate electrical sign off certificate
issued at the time of works to the safety officer and be available for inspection if
required by authorised officers.
57. The local authority shall be informed of the intended use of pyrotechnics in advance.
This shall be in form of written notification and should contain details of quantity,
effect type, drawing or set plans showing the positions of each effect. A
demonstration may be requested for any unfamiliar effects or if there are any
concerns.
58. All medical provision planning shall take into consideration the likelihood of a major
incident and shall delegate powers to the statutory identified body for such major
incident, e.g. the Police and the London Ambulance Service.
59. The Applicant shall carry out a suitable and sufficient risk assessment, as well as use
current industry guidance to determine the level of first aid provision for the event.
60. It shall be the duty of the Applicant to ensure that all those providing medical care
on site are registered with their respective professional bodies and/or organisations
and that this registration is current for the duration of their presence at the event
site.
61. A record shall be made and kept of anybody that receives first aid on site. These
records shall be retained by the PLH for at least 12 months following the event.
62. The organisers undertake to provide cleaning services to remove litter and waste, to
apply appropriate protocols to control spillage or other contamination and to
respect the natural and built environment of the site.
63. The Applicant shall ensure that sufficient, suitable and adequate purpose-built
refuse receptacles are provided to the site for the
64. duration of the event.
65. The Applicant shall ensure that cleaning teams are deployed where necessary, prior
to, during and after the event, both within the event site, the wider park and

Page 85

neighbouring streets and roads as specified in the Waste and Sustainability
Management Plan.
66. The Applicant shall ensure that where necessary during the night, the waste
management company deploy cleaning teams to clean the site and ensure that all
waste is removed from site either by the next opening time or after breakdown.
67. A suitable and sufficient risk assessment shall be carried out to determine the
adequate level of waste infrastructure to be
68. provided at the event, which may include yard skips, bins RCV waste trucks.
69. The Applicant shall ensure that waste management operatives litter pick and remove
all waste and infrastructures and ensure that all waste equipment is removed from
site.
70. All grey waste water toilet effluent shall be the responsibility of the organiser and
arrangement shall be sought to ensure the correct transfer and disposal away from
site.
71. The final sound management plan must be submitted for approval by the licensing
Authority a minimum of two weeks prior to the first event date. The noise consultant
shall liaise between all parties including PLH, organiser, sound engineers and sound
equipment suppliers, Environmental Health and the Licensing Authority on all
matters relating to the noise control prior to the event.
72. The organiser will employ the services of a qualified noise consultant. The noise
consultant will produce a Sound Management Plan that will detail measures that
should be put in place to manage music noise on site and minimise disruption to
local residents. The plan will include, but not be limited to, the following
information: The music noise limits / the monitoring locations / music noise times
and duration / sound checks and rehearsal times and durations, including atypical
events / noise control procedures and music noise levels monitoring methodology /
complaints monitoring and action / compliance reporting.
73. There shall be unrestricted access to relevant areas for local authority officials for
the purpose of sound level measurements, communication with the noise consultant
and sound engineers and monitoring licence conditions.
74. Prior to the event, a sound propagation test will take place. The exact times for this
will be agreed with Lambeth Licensing Officials in advance. The purpose of this test is
to set appropriate control limits at the mixer position. The sound system shall be
configured and operated in a similar manner as intended for the event. The sound
source used for the test shall be similar in character to the music likely to be played
at the event.
75. The licensee shall ensure that the promoter, sound equipment suppliers and all
individual sound engineers are informed of the sound control limits and that any

Page 86

instructions from the noise consultant regarding noise levels shall be implemented.
The noise consultant shall monitor noise levels at mixer desk positions and advise
sound engineers to ensure agreed limits are not broken, where possible.
76. The Applicant shall contact the building management companies for all residential
properties in the immediate area, in order to notify them of the event, including
details of the event timings and community hotline number, The community hotline
number will also be on display around the perimeter of the premises during the
event.
77. Noisy construction works audible beyond the site boundary shall be undertaken
during the hours of 08:00 - 20:00 any works outside of these hours must be agreed
with Lambeth Licensing and Environmental Health (Public Protection). If works or
operations are agreed outside of the above hours a contact telephone number must
be provided for the person in charge of these operations. All efforts should be made
to prevent or reduce light pollution, especially to residential properties in the
vicinity.
78. All site deliveries and collections shall be undertaken with due care, attention and
diligently to minimise disturbance to residents and noise sensitive premises within
the vicinity. Details of any complaints received through the noise hotline shall be
recorded and be made available to responsible authorities if requested. Complaints
logged by residents or businesses in respect of noise and other issues shall be
addressed within 24 hours and kept on record for at least 12 months following the
event.
79. The organisers will implement a Child and Vulnerable Persons Policy which will
include provisions if a child or vulnerable person is found or reported missing. This
will include liaison at the planning stages with the Police to ensure the correct
questions are asked at the outset by event staff should details of the missing person
need to be escalated to the Police. Any person under the age of 18 years, found
within the boundaries of the licensable areas to be in possession of alcohol or
deemed to be intoxicated shall be escorted by Security Staff to a "safe waiting area".
His or her parents/responsible adult will be contacted to collect such a person and
remove him/her from the event. All Staff working with children will be DBS checked.
80. A Challenge 25 policy shall be used throughout the site.
81. Age restrictions may apply to each event day, the age restrictions for each event day
will be agreed in advance with the Licensing Authority and will be contained within
the EMOP each year.
82. Different events or activities in certain venues on site may have separate age
restrictions - access to these venues will also be controlled by Security to ensure
relevant age limits are respected. If some activities do have age restrictions, this will
be advertised in publicity or at point of entry. These events or activities will be
agreed by Licensing Authority and will be contained in the EMOP. There will be no

Page 87

adult or other unsuitable activity taking place during the event that would be visible
to children passing the event.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 89

Agenda Item 5a

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 10 MAY 2022
Item No: 5a
Report title: 65 - 67 Clapham High Street London SW4 7TG
Applicant: Public Protection
Application type: Temporary Event Notices (TEN)
Application date: 05 April 2022
Wards: Ferndale
Premises type: Metro Bank store as a banking hall, activities also taking place on the
pavement outside of the store.
Policy Context: Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024
Report author: Mrs Sarah Williams, Licensing Officer, Public Protection, Regulatory Services
and Assurance, 0207 926 6141, sgwilliams@lambeth.gov.uk

APPLICATION SUMMARY
This is an application by Public Protection for a counter notice to be issued against a Temporary Event
Notice.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Licensing Objectives (chapter 5, pages 9 to 15 of the policy and appendices 1 to 4, pages 41 to
45)
The Licensing Objectives engaged by this application are:
a.
b.

Prevention of Public Nuisance;
Public Safety

Page 90
1.

APPLICATION

1.1

On 5 April 2022, Miss Amy McNeil gave the Licensing Authority a Temporary Event Notice (TEN)
under section 100 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The Notice will authorise regulated entertainment.

1.3

It is proposed to provide this activity to no more than 499 persons at the premises from 11:00 - 17:30
hours on 15 May 2022.

1.4

A copy of the notice is attached to this report as Annex A.

2.

REPRESENTATION

2.1

An objection to the notice was received from the Public Protection Service on 7 April 2022, which
engages with the licensing objectives of the prevention of public nuisance and public safety.

2.2

The responsible authority is of the view that there is insufficient information in the application, and
they are concerned that the event will not be managed satisfactorily, so as to prevent any anti-social
behaviour or public nuisance.

2.3

The last date for objections to be received to the notice was 8 April 2022.

2.4

A copy of the objection has been provided to the applicant and is attached to this report as Annex
B.

3.

CURRENT LICENCE

3.1

There is no premises licence in place for the address.

4.

BACKGROUND HISTORY

4.1

The applicant has informed the Licensing service that they have submitted an application for a
pavement licence from Lambeth Highway Department. The Licensing service has not received
any confirmation as to the status of this application.

5.

OBSERVATIONS

5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) relevant to this application and the representations
received are Chapters:
7)
9)
15)

5.2

Temporary Event Notices;
Determining Applications; and,
Regulated Entertainment.

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that relevant to this application and the
representations are Sections:

Page 91
5)

The Licensing Objectives
5.11) The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
5.20) Public Safety
5.27) Prevention of Public Nuisance
Policy 6 - Temporary Events
Appendix 1 – The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Appendix 2 – Public Safety
Appendix 3 – Prevention of Public Nuisance
Appendix 5 – Recommend hours by location
Appendix 6 – Types of premises
Appendix 7 – Major, District and local Town Centres

6.

CONCLUSION
Members have two options when determining this Notice:
a.
b.

To issue a Counter-Notice;
To refuse to issue Counter-Notice.

Page 92
CONSULTATION INFORMATION
Department(s) or
Organisation(s)
Public Protection

Consulted (Y/N)
Applicant

Date
Response
Received
07/04/22

Comments
summarized in
report (Y/N)
Y

APPENDICES AND REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

Appendices

Reference documents
Local Government Act 1972 – Access to
information documents used in the preparation of
this report

Annex A – TEN Application
Annex B – Objection Notice
1.
2.

3.

The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”).
Amended Guidance issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the
Guidance”).
Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 2024 (“the Policy”).

Lambeth Council
Lambeth Council, P.O. Box 734, Winchester, S023 5DG
T: 020 7926 1000
E: infoservice@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 93
Ref: DSFX1649087341759

Temporary Event Notice

Personal Details of Premises User
Your Name (please read note 1)
Title *

Miss

First Name *

Amy

Surname *

McNeil

Have you been known by any previous names, including a
maiden name? *

No

Personal Details of Premises User
Date of Birth *
Place of Birth *
National Insurance Number *

1/6

Page 94

Ref: DSFX1649087341759

Current Address
We will use this address and contact details to correspond with you unless you specify an alternative correspondence
address.
Street Address *
Address line 2
Address line 3
Town/City *
Postcode *
Daytime Telephone Number *
Evening Telephone Number
Mobile Telephone Number
Fax Number
Email Address *
Do you have an alternative correspondence address you
would like us to use? *

No

The Premises

Premises Address

65-67 CLAPHAM HIGH STREET LONDON LAMBETH SW4
7TG

Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have
effect in relation to the premises, or any part of the premises?
No - Neither
If so, please select and enter the Premises Licence Number
or Club Premises Certificate Number.*

2/6

Page 95

Ref: DSFX1649087341759

Premises
If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address
or intend to restrict the area to which this notice applies,
please give a description and details. (Please read note 3)

We intend to use the inside of the Metro Bank store as a
banking hall, as it usually operates

Please describe the nature of the premises. (Please read
note 4) *

The premise is a banking hall and will be used for this
purpose. We would also like to have some activities taking
place on the pavement outside the store on Sunday 15th May

Please describe the nature of the event. (Please read note 5)
*

A promotional event to give out branded items e.g. pens,
bags and leaflets, have an artist performing relaxing, Sundaystyle music outside the store and a coffee cart outside the
store which will hand out free coffees.

3/6

Page 96

Ref: DSFX1649087341759

Licensable Activites
Please state the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises (please tick all licensable activities you
intend to carry on). (Please read note 6) * More than one can be selected.
The sale by retail of alcohol

The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club

✓

The provision of regulated entertainment (Please read note 7)

The provision of late night refreshment

Are you giving a late temporary event notice? (Please read
note 8) *

No

Please state the dates on which you intend to use these
premises for licensable activities (Please read note 9). * Start
Date

15/05/2022

End Date

15/05/2022

Please state the times during the event period that you
propose to carry on licensable activities (please give times in
24 hour clock). (Please read note 10) *

11:00-17:00

Please state the maximum number of people at any one time
that you intend to allow to be present at the premises during
the times when you intend to carry on licensable activities,
including any staff, organisers or performers. (Please read
note 11) *

499

If the licensable activities will include the sale or supply of
alcohol, please state whether these will be for consumption
on or off the premises, or both (please read note 12). *

No alcohol supplied

Please state if the licensable activities will include the
provision of relevant entertainment. If so, please state the
times during the event period that you propose to provide
relevant entertainment (including, but not limited to lap
dancing and pole dancing). (Please read note 13) *

Yes, we would like to have a solo artist performing relaxing,
Sunday-style music outside the store during the day. Along
with some relaxing recorded music in between set times.

Personal Licence Holder
Do you currently hold a valid personal licence? (please read
note 14)*

No

4/6

Page 97
Previous Temporary Event Notices
Have you previously given a temporary event notice in
respect of any premises, for events falling in the same
calendar year as the event for which you are now giving this
temporary event notice? (please read note 15) *

No

Previous Temporary Event Notices
Have you already given a temporary event notice for the
same premises in which the event period either; ends 24
hours or less before begins 24 hours or less after the event
period proposed in this notice? *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues
Has any associate of yours given a temporary event notice
for an event in the same calendar year as the event for which
you are now giving a temporary event notice? (please read
note 16) *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues
Has any associate of yours already given a temporary event
notice for the same premises in which the event period; a)
ends 24 hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less
after the event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on
licensable activities given a temporary event notice for an
event in the same calendar year as the event for which you
are now giving a temporary event notice? *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues
Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on
licensable activities already given a temporary event notice
for the same premises in which the event period: a) ends 24
hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less after the
event period proposed in this notice? *

No

5/6

Ref: DSFX1649087341759

Page 98

Ref: DSFX1649087341759

Declaration
Please ensure you submit all the information required to support your proposal. Failure to submit all the information required
could result in your notice being deemed invalid. It will not be considered valid until all the information required by the
licensing authority has been submitted. Please read guidance note 17 for further information. I understand that a copy of this
notice will be sent to the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises are situated. I understand that a copy of
this notice will be sent to the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the premises are
situated. If the premises are situated in one or more licensing authority areas, I understand that the issuing authority will send
at least one copy of this notice to each additional licensing authority. If the premises are situated in one or more police areas, I
understand that the issuing authority will send a copy of this notice to each additional chief officer of police.
It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities described include the supply of
alcohol that all such supplies are made by or under the authority of the premises user. (please read note 18)
The information contained in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that it is an offence: (i)
to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in or in connection with this temporary event notice and that a person is
liable on summary conviction for such an offence to a fine of any amount; and (ii) to permit an unauthorised licensable activity
to be carried on at any place and that a person is liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of any amount,
or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months, or to both.
Name of Person Signing *

Amy McNeil

Date *

04/04/2022

✓

Declaration Made

Email confirmation
On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below
Forename

Amy

Surname /Company Name

McNeil

Email *
Telephone

6/6

Page 99
From:
To:
Cc:

Keith Badrick

Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

"ASMailbox.LambethLicensing@met.police.uk"; Licensing; PPDutyDesk; Sarah G Williams; Yannic Mckoy; Ali
Peyvandi
REPRESENTATION AGAINST 22/00271/TEN -65 - 67 Clapham High Street - 15.5.22
07 April 2022 07:24:42
image001.png
image002.png

Good morning Miss McNeil
Thank you for your TEN application 22/00271/TEN -65 - 67 Clapham High Street - 15.5.22
Having looked at the application Lambeth Public Protection are representing against this
application.
Notice of objection under Section 104 (2) of the Licensing Act 2003
The Public Protection Team are entering a representations against the above mentioned TEN
application on the grounds of the following licensing objectives:
Prevention of Public Nuisance.
Public safety.
Your application does not fulfil the requirements as listed in the Lambeth Statement of Licensing
Policy, specifically;
12.11. When a TENs is submitted the Authority expects that the following information will be
provided: · Evidence of permission to use outside space for an event, specifically where the
outside space is Council-owned or public land and, where permission has been granted, evidence
that all applicable fees have been paid in full; · A clear description of the area in which it is
proposed to carry out the licensable activities; · A risk assessment and capacity determination; ·
Evidence of consultation with the Lambeth Events Safety Advisory Group where this is
considered appropriate; and · Any other information that is relevant or pertinent to the TENs.
This is covered in section 12, pages 23, 24 and 25 of the licensing policy, link below.
https://beta.lambeth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2021-06/brl-statement-of-licensing-policy-201924-accessible.pdf
Should you still wish to continue with this application you will need to contact Lambeth Business
Rates Services and Licensing to apply for a pavement license https://beta.lambeth.gov.uk/Business-rates-services-and-licensing/licensing-and-permits/Applychange-or-pay-for-a-licence/Apply-for-a-licence/Apply-for-a-pavement-licence/apply-tableschairs-licence
In addition there is no information with this application in relation to crowd safety or
management, how it is intended to prevent the event causing an obstruction of the public
highway, security arrangements, noise control or the removal of litter and waste, please provide
me with this information as well.
Licensing will be in contact in relation to this representation.

Page 100

Kind Regards
Keith Badrick
ASB Enforcement Officer
Public Protection, Assurance & Regulatory Services
Environment Directorate
Resident Services
London Borough of Lambeth
Telephone: 020 7926 3085
Mobile:
Email: kbadrick@lambeth.gov.uk
Website: http://www.lambeth.gov.uk
Lambeth – a cooperative council
As part of our Safer Streets campaign, have your say and tell us where in the borough you feel
unsafe, so we can take action:
https://lambethsaferstreets.commonplace.is/

Privacy Note
The London Borough of Lambeth (the “Council”) will make use of personal data it collects when
issuing Notices for the purpose of processing and enforcing them, and if required, to obtain
recent address details to ensure that the notice and any further notices are issued to the correct
address. As a ‘public task’, the processing of personal data related to the enforcement by the
Council of a notice does not require your consent. The personal information collected by the
Council’s enforcement teams may be shared with its enforcement contractors, other
government agencies and 3rd parties to ensure appropriate enforcement actions, and for the
prevention and detection of crime. The personal information will be retained for 6 years
following the closure of this case. If you are concerned about how the council is using your
personal data, you may find more information about your rights on our website
www.lambeth.gov.uk/privacy-notice.

